
COMING EVENTS AT  

LOBRANO HOUSE 

 
 The monthly luncheon meeting 

will be held on Thursday, April 17, 

2014, at noon at the Kate Lobrano 

House.  Guest speaker for the pro-

gram will be Mayor Les Fillingame 

of Bay St. Louis, who will discuss 

the harbor and other plans for the 

future of the city.  Reservations 

are required  and may be made by 

calling 467-4090.  Respectfully we 

must insist that you please call by 

noon on Wednesday, April 16, 

2014, to make your reservation, to 

help us plan seating which is lim-

ited to forty-eight people, and to 

apprise us of the number for whom 

to prepare.  The price of the lunch 

is $10.00. 
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LOGTOWN 

A Shadow in a Memory 
 

Edited by 

Eddie Coleman 

 

(Information in the following arti-

cle comes from two earlier essays, 

one by Charles Gray and the other 

by Mildred Otis Fountain.) 

 

 Every spring the Pearl Riv-

er rises within its banks along the 

many bayous and tributaries as the 

waters of the spring rains make 

their way to the Gulf of Mexico.  It 

wasn’t very long ago that this now 

deserted landscape was alive with 

activity.  The silent remainders of 

the people who lived here can be 

found among the wildflowers and 

brambles.  Beneath a large oak tree 

still stands a set of steps  now lead-

ing nowhere, but once gracing the 

entrance to a home filled with the 

warmth and love of a strong pioneer 

family.   

 Many families through sev-

eral generations have called Logtown 

home.  Among them were  Chalon, 

Carré, Weston, Baxter, Otis, God-

dard, Koch, Lott, Seal, Fountain, 

Bailey, Tinkelpa, and Nelson.    Only 

a few shadows remain where once 

stood the drug store, the hotel, the ice 

factory, the post office, the school 

house, the sawmill, the brick com-

missary, the silent movie house, and 

other buildings that were the center 

of this once-thriving town. 

 There was an earlier settle-

www.hancockcountyhistoricalsociety.com 

A generous donation has been 

made to the Hancock County 

Historical Society by the estate 

of Meg Hilliker.  Meg served 

the Society as treasurer on the 

Board of Directors and as a de-

voted volunteer for many years. 

Logtown School, c. 1890 



with the Carrés, and later he bought 

out their interest, becoming sole 

owner.  Under his direction, the 

Weston Lumber Company grew 

into one of the largest industries in 

Hancock County and Mississippi.  

 Horatio S. Weston, son of 

Henry Weston, was instrumental in 

making the H. Weston Lumber 

Company the first in Mississippi to 

begin the practice of reforestation.  

The company participated in orga-

nized forestry work and forest fire 

prevention.  In fact, the younger 

Weston was largely responsible for 

the laws passed by the 1927-28 leg-

islature whereby a State Forestry 

Commission and the State Forestry 

Service were set up on a practical 

operating basis. 

 It is interesting to note that 

the Weston Lumber Company had 

its own electric plant and ice facto-

ry that provided services to the 

town.  The company commissary 

had grocery, hardware, and drug 

departments.  Moreover it carried 

ready-to-wear clothes for women, 

men, and children, it had a milli-

nery department, and it had a dis-

play section for coffins.  While this 

section might seem gruesome to 

people today, it served quite a use-

ful purpose.  It was a convenience 

for families of the deceased, and it 

prevented the delay caused by ship-

ping caskets from New Orleans.  

 With the growth of the lum-

ber companies and the influx of 

settlers to the area, businesses and 

services to support the population 

were necessary.  The first church in 

Logtown was built about 1875 by 

the H. Weston Lumber Company 

on land donated to the Methodist 

Church by Henry Carré.  The 

church was originally named 

Cooper’s Chapel in honor of the 

Reverend Inman W. Cooper, its 

first minister, who was brought to 

Logtown by Weston to assist in or-

ganizing a Methodist Church.  Later 

a Baptist Church was built with the 
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LOBRANO HOUSE  

HOURS 

 

MONDAY   —  FRIDAY        
10:00AM  —  3:00PM 

Closed:  12:00—1:00 (lunch) 

MISSION STATEMENT 
 

“TO PRESERVE THE GENERAL 

AND ARCHITECTURAL HISTORY 

OF HANCOCK COUNTY AND TO 

PRESERVE THE KATE LOBRANO 

HOUSE AND COLLECTIONS 

THEREIN; TO RESEARCH AND IN-

TERPRET LIFE IN HANCOCK 

COUNTY; AND TO ENCOURAGE 

AN APPRECIATION OF AND IN-

TEREST IN HISTORICAL PRESER-

VATION.” 
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ment here, and indeed there are 

remnants of it too.  The Logtown 

shell mound of the Choctaw Indians 

still contains pottery treasurers left 

by the proud people who lived here 

for hundreds of years before Euro-

peans came to the region.  

 Early explorers passed 

through, followed by settlers.  One 

such pioneer, Joseph Chalon, had a 

twelve hundred acre French land 

grant in 1788 called Cabanage Lat-

anier, more familiarly remembered 

as Palmetto Plantation.  With the 

advent of timber harvesting, the 

area became more and more popu-

lar for the landing of logs— hence 

the name “Logtown.”  It was just 

one of many towns that grew up 

along the Pearl River because of the 

timber industry plus other settle-

ments on the Jourdan River and on 

the bayous in other areas of Han-

cock County. 

 The first Logtown sawmill 

of record was a small one erected 

by slave labor in 1845.  A larger 

mill was soon built by E. G. God-

dard of Saginaw, Michigan.  Mr. 

Goddard and co-owner, a Mr. Judd, 

helped in developing the town by 

building houses for the company 

officials, a boarding house, and a 

store.  This mill operated until c. 

1893. 

 Additional information ob-

tained from the 1850 census states 

that Judge D. R. Wingate owned a 

sawmill in Logtown when Henry 

Weston came south from 

Skowhegan, Maine, for his health.  

For a while Weston worked at the 

W. J. Poitevent Mill in Gainesville; 

however in 1848, he was hired to 

operate the Wingate mill in Log-

town, thus beginning his career 

climb from wage hand to multi-

millionaire industrialist.  In 1856, 

Weston, W. W. Carré, and Henry 

Carré bought the mill from Judge 

Wingate.  In addition Weston also 

bought the Wingate home.  Still, in 

1878 he dissolved the partnership 



that had nurtured it in its heyday.  

However, this prosperity was short 

lived.   In 1962, the news reached 

the residents that Logtown would be 

included in the “buffer zone” of the 

soon-to-be built Mississippi Test 

Facility, built by NASA and later 

renamed the Stennis Space Center.  

For this reason the town along with 

Napoleon and Gainesville would 

need to be evacuated and their resi-

dents relocated.   

 Leaving Logtown was very 

difficult for families who had lived 

in their lovely old homes for four 

and five generations.  All of them 

treasured the peace and tranquility, 

the association of close friends, and 

the rich heritage that they found in 

this small town.  Although the land 

remains, Logtown exists today only 

in the memories of those who 

once lived there.  

 

SOURCES:  

 

Fountain, Mildred Otis.  “Logtown.”  

 The Sea Coast Echo, 28 June 

 1992:  D1+. 

Gray, Charles H.  Logtown Revisited.  

 Bay St. Louis, MS:  Hancock 

 County  Historical Socie-

 ty. 

 

  

THE LOGTOWN 

OF  

S. G. THIGPEN 

 
Edited by 

Eddie Coleman 

 

(The following information comes 

from  two books by S. G. Thigpen 

with very little editing on my part.) 

 

from Next Door to Heaven, p. 5 

 
 Logtown, when I first went 

there, was at its zenith.  I first went 

to Logtown in 1918 as an employee 
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help of Mr. Toulme Holliman and 

Mr. John Nelson, both skilled car-

penters and longtime residents of 

the town. 

 Further, during the years 

that Logtown existed, it boasted a 

school, a branch of the Hancock 

Bank, a post office, some physi-

cians, a few pharmacists, and sever-

al grocery stores in addition to the 

aforementioned movie house, hotel, 

and boarding house.  After the clos-

ing of the Weston Mill in 1928, the 

Sam Whitfield Corporation began 

its pulpwood operation during the 

height of the Great Depression in 

the middle of the 1930s.  This in-

dustry remained open until 1964.  

 Even after the decline of 

the lumber business and their strug-

gles through the Depression, fami-

lies remained in Logtown.  The 

general prosperity of the 1950s 

reached even to the secluded town 

so picturesquely nestled by the river 



of Crosby & Rowlands to exchange 

deeds whereby Crosby and Row-

lands deeded land and timber they 

owned near Weston’s [Weston 

Lumber Company] operation for 

land and timber Weston owned near 

their operation.  Two big sawmills 

employing many hundreds of men 

were in operation at Logtown back 

then.  There was a railroad from 

Logtown to Ansley on the L & N 

and one from Logtown to Picayune.  

Many carloads of lumber were 

shipped daily from Logtown back 

then and big cargoes were carried 

out on barges pulled by tugs to be 

loaded on ocean going steamers 

anchored in the deep waters of the 

gulf. 

 The two company stores at 

Logtown and Westonia carried tre-

mendous stocks of merchandise.  

These stores were much larger than 

any in Picayune at that time.  There 

were dozens of nice homes in Log-

town then.  The streets and homes 

were well kept and attractive.  Log-

town was for many years a town of  

two to three thousand people. 

………. 

 

from Pearl River:  Highway to Glo-

ry Land, 81-83 

 

 Where Logtown stood was 

for hundreds of years an Indian vil-

lage on Pearl River.  The first 

whites to come to the little Indian 

community were French trappers 

and traders…. 

 Logtown was the home of a 

considerable Indian population long 

after all the Indians were gone from 

Pearlington and Gainesville. As log-

ging and sawmilling became more 

important, white people began to 

move into the little Indian village 

set among the pine and live oaks 

just back from the river.  As the 

whites gradually moved in, the Indi-

ans just as gradually moved out, 

some of them going across the river 

into Honey Island, but most of them 
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moving over next to Devil Swamp, 

a few miles northeast of Logtown. 

 The Indians left many signs 

of their long time residence in old 

Logtown.  There were arrow heads, 

pottery, and other articles used by 

Indians buried in a number of 

mounds in the area. 

 For many years, citizens of 

Logtown used to make trips on Sun-

days and holidays to the nearby In-

dian village along the edges of Dev-

il Swamp.  The ways and customs 

of the whites did not appeal to the 

Indians.  They lived their own lives 

according to their own customs in 

the old time houses of the Indians in 

their own villages.  They swapped 

their baskets of various designs and 

the hides they had cured in white 

men’s trading places for the few 

things they wanted from such plac-

es.  They grew small plots of food 

stuffs in season, but mostly they got 

their food from hunting and fish-

ing…. 

 Old timers tell us that Indi-

ans sold baskets in Logtown, 

NEW MEMBERS 

 

Ken D’Arcangelo 

Payson, AZ 

 

Dan Ellis 

Pass Christian, MS 

 

Susan T. Gachassin 

Lafayette, LA 

 

Helen A. Parker 

Hattiesburg, MS 

 

Patricia and Donald C. Scafidi 

Waveland, MS 

Gainesville, and Pearlington.  When 

I was a boy living out on a farm, 

Indians would pass our home sever-

al times a year selling baskets they 

had woven.  These baskets came in 

many sizes as much as two feet in 

diameter and about twenty-four 

inches high.  They made one basket 

for carrying loads on a person’s 

back.  It was about thirty to thirty-

six inches long with one side flat to 

fit comfortably on a back.  My 

Mother [sic] used to look forward to 

their coming and always bought 

several of the baskets.  They sold 

these baskets at low prices; they 

were vari-colored and very dura-

ble…. 

 
SOURCES: 

 

Thigpen, S. G.  Next Door to Heaven.  

 Kingsport, TN:  Kingsport 

 Press, Inc., 1965. 

Thigpen, S. G.  Pearl River:  Highway 

 to Glory Land.  Kingsport, 

 TN:  Kingsport  Press, Inc., 

 1965. 

Retiring the flag at the Logtown  

Post Office, 9/30/1963 
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Marsha Buras 

985-285-4690 

mbras24@yahoo.com 

Sue Layel 

228-224-2559 

layels@aol.com 

Search homes in-

stantly at 
www.mississippi 

coastsue.com 

 

Century 21 of Diamondhead 

The Sisters:  Ten Days in Sicily 
(Sisters Series) 

By L.L. Lee 
 

A humorous, mystery novel set in  

Louisiana, post-Katrina Bay Saint  

Louis, and Sicily. 

 

Available at Bay Books, Amazon.com,  

Kindle 

 

Contact Lee3731@bellsouth.net or 

Amazon.com/author/lllee 
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Jean Ann’s 

Fashion Express 
Ladies Apparel—Jewelry— Giftware 

Jean Ann Thriffiley 

228-332-5326 
 

“Best kept secret in  

Old Town Bay St. Louis” 

  
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

READ!  ESCAPE!  ENJOY! 

BOOKS BY PAUL LA VIOLETTE  

ALL BOOKS AVAILABLE 

AT THE HANCOCK COUN-

TY HISTORICAL 

 SOCIETY 

$25.00 

$20.00 

$20.00 

$30.00 

$20.00 

$20.00 

 

Featuring Collections by 
Maurice Milleur Pewter, Victoria Lynn Swarovski Crystal,  

Victoria Cross Vintage, Handcrafted metal by Deborah 

DeGraw, Earth Dreams, Keren Hart, and much more! 

Visit our website: Bay St. Louis Old Town Ms Gulf Coast—

Fashion Express 

Inside Maggie May’s 

126 Main St. 

Old Town Bay St. Louis 

 

 

PLACE YOUR AD HERE. 

SIXTH EDITION—(EDITIONS 1-5 SOLD OUT) 

 

 

BUY: 

MOONSHINE:  Secret Nationwide Delivery Map 

AL SAUCIER.COM      VENDORS 

BAY BOOKS: 228-463-2688 

KILN 

 

 

ADVERTISE 

WITH 

US. 
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 305 Main 

 

Steve B. Treutel, CFM 

Senior Financial Advisor 

Mississippi Gulf Coast 

(228) 385-6307 

Merrill Lynch Wealth Management makes available products and services offered by Merrill Lynch, 

Pierce, Fenner & Smith incorporated, a registered broker-dealer and member SIPC, and other subsidar-

ies of Bank of America Corporation.  All rights reserved. 

AD-06-12-0048 ARSOT2V1-10-11 Code 453007PM-0612 228-466-4793 
 

www.vrbo.com (ID #313124 & 400259) 

 

MANIERI REAL ESTATE, LLC 

501 C Main St., Bay St. Louis, MS 

Joe Manieri/Broker 

manierij@bellsouth.net 

228-216-5750, FAX:  228-466-4794 



 

HANCOCK COUNTY HISTORICAL SOCIETY 
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